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From: Scearce, Lynn

To: gary.frost@gapac.com

Cc: ron.reynolds@gapac.com; MMVEST@GAPAC.com; forney.kathleen@epa.gov; ceron.heather@epa.gov; McWade
Tammy; Read. David; Friday, Barbara; Scearce, Lynn; Rachal. Richard

Subject: 1070005-081-AC, Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC., Palatka Mill, Draft Permit

Date: Thursday, June 20, 2013 9:57:16 AM

Attachments: image002.png

1070005-081-AC - Written Notice sianed.pdf

Dear Mr. Frost:

Attached is the official Notice of Draft Permit for the project referenced below. Click on the
link displayed below to access the permit project documents and reply back verifying receipt
of the document(s) provided in the link.

Note: We must receive verification that you are able to access the documents. Your immediate reply will preclude
subsequent e-mail transmissions to verify accessibility of the document(s).

Owner/Company Name: GEORGIA-PACIFIC CONSUMER OPERATIONS LLC
Facility Name: PALATKA PULP and PAPER MILL

Project Number: 1070005-081-AC

Permit Status: DRAFT

Permit Activity: CONSTRUCTION

Facility County: PUTNAM

Click on the following link to access the permit project documents:
http://ARM-

If you have any problems opening the documents or would like further information, please
contact the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Office of Permitting and
Compliance.

Lynn Scearce

(Division O Air FRESunCe MasdgerrdanL

Office of Permitting and Compliance (OPC)
Division of Air Resource Management — DEP
2600 Blair Stone Road, Mail Stop 5505
Phone: 850-717-9025

Please take a few minutes to share your comments on the service you received from the department
by clicking on this link DEP_Customer Survey.
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ROTECTON
W - FLoriDA DEPARTMENT OF

RICK SCOTT
EnvironmvenTaL ProTecTiON GOVERNOR

7 BOB MARTINEZ CENTER
LORIDA ! 2600 BLAIR STONE ROAD HERSCHEL T. VINYARD JR.
- TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-2400 SECRETARY

Sent by Electronic mail — Received Receipt Requested

Gary L. Frost, Vice-President Operations
Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC
Post Office Box 919

Palatka, Florida 32178

Re: Project No. 1070005-081-AC
Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC, Palatka Mill
Replacement of Converting Department Baghouse with Drum Filtering System

Dear Mr. Frost:

On May 17, you submitted an application requesting to replace the existing Converting Department baghouse
system with a new drum filtering system to control emissions of particulate matter from 12 converting lines. The
existing facility is located in Putham County at 215 County Road 216 in Palatka, Florida. Enclosed are the
following documents: the written notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit; the Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air
Permit; the Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination; and the draft permit with Appendices. The
Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit is the actual notice that you must have published in the legal
advertisement section of a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by this project. If you have any
guestions, please contact the project engineer, Tammy McWade, at 850/717-9086.

Sincerely,

M‘“’m David Read
§r|,o X 2013.06.20 09:24:30
==s======== -04'00°

for Jeffery F. Koerner, Program Administrator

Office of Permitting and Compliance
Division of Air Resource Management

Enclosures

JFK/sa/ttm

www.dep.state.fl.us







WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

In the Matter of an
Application for Air Permit by:

Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC Project No. 1070005-080-AC
Post Office Box 919 Minor Air Construction Permit
Palatka, Florida 32178 Palatka Mill
Putnam County, Florida

Authorized Representative: Project: Replacement of Converting Department
Gary L. Frost, Vice-President Operations Baghouse with Drum Filtering System

Facility Location Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC operates the existing Palatka Mill, which is
located in Putnam County at 215 County Road 216 in Palatka, Florida.

Project: The applicant proposes to replace the existing baghouse system that controls emissions of particulate
matter from 12 tissue converting lines in the Converting Department with a new drum filtering system. Details of
the project are provided in the application and the enclosed Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination.

Permitting Authority: Applications for air construction permits are subject to review in accordance with the
provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 62-4, 62-210 and 62-212 of the Florida
Administrative Code (F.A.C.). The proposed project is not exempt from air permitting requirements and an air
permit is required to perform the proposed work. The Division of Air Resource Management’s (DARM) Office
of Permitting and Compliance is the Permitting Authority responsible for making a permit determination for this
project. The Permitting Authority’s physical address is: 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida. The
Permitting Authority’s mailing address is: 2600 Blair Stone Road, MS #5505, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400.
The Permitting Authority’s telephone number is 850/717-9000.

Project File: A complete project file is available for public inspection during the normal business hours of 8:00
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday (except legal holidays), at address indicated above for the Permitting
Authority. The complete project file includes the draft permit, the Technical Evaluation and Preliminary
Determination, the application, and the information submitted by the applicant, exclusive of confidential records
under Section 403.111, F.S. Interested persons may contact the Permitting Authority’s project review engineer
for additional information at the address or phone number listed above.

Notice of Intent to Issue Permit: The Permitting Authority gives notice of its intent to issue an air permit to the
applicant for the project described above. The applicant has provided reasonable assurance that operation of the
proposed equipment will not adversely impact air quality and that the project will comply with all appropriate
provisions of Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296 and 62-297, F.A.C. The Permitting Authority will
issue a final permit in accordance with the conditions of the proposed draft permit unless a timely petition for an
administrative hearing is filed under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. or unless public comment received in
accordance with this notice results in a different decision or a significant change of terms or conditions.

Public Notice: Pursuant to Section 403.815, F.S. and Rules 62-110.106 and 62-210.350, F.A.C., you (the
applicant) are required to publish at your own expense the enclosed Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit
(Public Notice). The Public Notice shall be published one time only as soon as possible in the legal advertisement
section of a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by this project. The newspaper used must meet
the requirements of Sections 50.011 and 50.031, F.S. in the county where the activity is to take place. If you are
uncertain that a newspaper meets these requirements, please contact the Permitting Authority at above address or
phone number. Pursuant to Rule 62-110.106(5) and (9), F.A.C., the applicant shall provide proof of publication
to the Permitting Authority at the above address within 7 days of publication. Failure to publish the notice and
provide proof of publication may result in the denial of the permit pursuant to Rule 62-110.106(11), F.A.C.

Comments: The Permitting Authority will accept written comments concerning the proposed draft permit for a
period of 14 days from the date of publication of the Public Notice. Written comments must be received by the
Permitting Authority by close of business (5:00 p.m.) on or before the end of the 14-day period. If written

Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations LLC Project No. 1070005-081-AC
Palatka Mill Installation of Drum Filtering System
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WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

comments received result in a significant change to the draft permit, the Permitting Authority shall revise the draft
permit and require, if applicable, another Public Notice. All comments filed will be made available for public
inspection.

Petitions: A person whose substantial interests are affected by the proposed permitting decision may petition for
an administrative hearing in accordance with Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. Petitions filed by the applicant or
any of the parties listed below must be filed within 14 days of receipt of this written notice of Intent to Issue Air
Permit. Petitions filed by any persons other than those entitled to written notice under Section 120.60(3), F.S.,
must be filed within 14 days of publication of the attached Public Notice or within 14 days of receipt of this
written notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit, whichever occurs first. Under Section 120.60(3), F.S., however, any
person who asked the Permitting Authority for notice of agency action may file a petition within 14 days of
receipt of that notice, regardless of the date of publication. A petitioner shall mail a copy of the petition to the
applicant at the address indicated above, at the time of filing. A petition for administrative hearing must contain
the information set forth below and must be filed (received) with the Agency Clerk in the Department’s Office of
General Counsel, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, MS 35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000,
Agency.Clerk@dep.state.fl.us, before the deadline. The failure of any person to file a petition within the
appropriate time period shall constitute a waiver of that person’s right to request an administrative determination
(hearing) under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S., or to intervene in this proceeding and participate as a party to
it. Any subsequent intervention (in a proceeding initiated by another party) will be only at the approval of the
presiding officer upon the filing of a motion in compliance with Rule 28-106.205, F.A.C.

A petition that disputes the material facts on which the Permitting Authority’s action is based must contain the
following information: (a) The name and address of each agency affected and each agency’s file or identification
number, if known; (b) The name, address, any email address, telephone number and any facsimile number of the
petitioner; the name, address any email address, telephone number, and any facsimile number of the petitioner’s
representative, if any, which shall be the address for service purposes during the course of the proceeding; and an
explanation of how the petitioner’s substantial interests will be affected by the agency determination; (c) A
statement of when and how each petitioner received notice of the agency action or proposed decision; (d) A
statement of all disputed issues of material fact. If there are none, the petition must so indicate; () A concise
statement of the ultimate facts alleged, including the specific facts the petitioner contends warrant reversal or
modification of the agency’s proposed action; (f) A statement of the specific rules or statutes the petitioner
contends require reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action including an explanation of how the
alleged facts relate to the specific rules or statutes; and, (g) A statement of the relief sought by the petitioner,
stating precisely the action the petitioner wishes the agency to take with respect to the agency’s proposed action.
A petition that does not dispute the material facts upon which the Permitting Authority’s action is based shall state
that no such facts are in dispute and otherwise shall contain the same information as set forth above, as required
by Rule 28-106.301, F.A.C.

Because the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate final agency action, the filing of a petition
means that the Permitting Authority’s final action may be different from the position taken by it in this written
notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit. Persons whose substantial interests will be affected by any such final
decision of the Permitting Authority on the application have the right to petition to become a party to the
proceeding, in accordance with the requirements set forth above.

Mediation: Mediation is not available in this proceeding.

Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations LLC Project No. 1070005-081-AC
Palatka Mill Installation of Drum Filtering System
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WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

Executed in Tallahassee, Florida.

David Read
2013.06.20
09:24:56 -04'00'
for Jeffery F. Koerner, Program Administrator

Office of Permitting and Compliance
Division of Air Resource Management

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned duly designated deputy agency clerk hereby certifies that this written notice of Intent to Issue Air
Permit package (including the Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit, the Technical Evaluation and
Preliminary Determination and the draft permit with Appendices) was sent by electronic mail, or a link to these
documents made available electronically on a publicly accessible server, with received receipt requested before
the close of business on the date indicated below to the following persons.

Mr. Gary L. Frost, Vice-President, Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations: gary.frost@gapac.com

Mr. Ron Reynolds, Environmental Engineer, Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations: ron.reynolds@gapac.com
Ms. Margarete M. Vest, P.E., Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations: mmvest@gapac.com

Ms. Merrilee L. Palcic, Northeast District Office: merrilee.l.palcic@dep.state.fl.us

Ms. Kathleen Forney, EPA Region 4: forney.kathleen@epa.gov

Ms. Heather Ceron, US EPA Region 4: ceron.heather@epa.gov

Ms. Barbara Friday, DEP OPC: barbara.friday@dep.state.fl.us

Ms. Lynn Scearce, DEP OPC: lynn.scearce@dep.state.fl.us

Clerk Stamp

FILING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FILED, on this date,
pursuant to Section 120.52(7), Florida Statutes, with the
designated agency clerk, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged.

Lynn Scearce
2013.06.20
09:41:00 -04'00'

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


			Mr. Gary L. Frost, Vice-President, Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations:  gary.frost@gapac.com


			Mr. Ron Reynolds, Environmental Engineer, Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations:  ron.reynolds@gapac.com


			Ms. Margarete M. Vest, P.E., Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations:  mmvest@gapac.com


			Ms. Merrilee L. Palcic, Northeast District Office:  merrilee.l.palcic@dep.state.fl.us


			Ms. Kathleen Forney, EPA Region 4:  forney.kathleen@epa.gov


			Ms. Heather Ceron, US EPA Region 4:  ceron.heather@epa.gov


			Ms. Barbara Friday, DEP OPC:  barbara.friday@dep.state.fl.us


			Ms. Lynn Scearce, DEP OPC:  lynn.scearce@dep.state.fl.us


			Clerk Stamp


			FILING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FILED, on this date, pursuant to Section 120.52(7), Florida Statutes, with the designated agency clerk, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged.





						2013-06-20T09:24:30-0400


			David Read








						2013-06-20T09:24:56-0400


			David Read








						2013-06-20T09:41:00-0400


			Lynn Scearce

















From: Reynolds. Ron E.

To: McWade, Tammy

Cc: Galler, Wayne J.; Eckenrode, Jim P.

Subject: FW: Georgia Pacific Consumer Operations, Palatka Mill, Project No. 1070005-081-AC
Date: Wednesday, June 19, 2013 6:31:10 PM

Tammy,

Sorry this is late. | did not see it until today. Please see the emails below noting that the dscfm total
of 209,000 in the application is correct and the acfm is estimated at 225,000 total (three fans at
75,000 each). Let us know if you have any questions. We can schedule a conference call if
necessary to clear things up.

Thank you,

Ron Reynolds
Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133

From: Galler, Wayne J.

Sent: Wednesday, June 19, 2013 3:58 PM

To: Dave Cownie; Martin Price; Todd Dietz; Drew White; Brian Roberson

Cc: Garris, Gregory S.; Reynolds, Ron E.; Eckenrode, Jim P.

Subject: RE: Georgia Pacific Consumer Operations, Palatka Mill, Project No. 1070005-081-AC

Thanks Dave-this means that the 69,000 dscfm value we used for the emission calculations is
correct, and we just need to let the state of FL know that the acfm value is 75,000 acfm.

Ron-can you let the state know that the emission calcs are correct as submitted and that the acfm
values are slightly different than what was listed on the application forms?

From: Dave Cownie [mailto:davecownie@rlkunz.com]

Sent: Monday, June 17, 2013 10:16 AM

To: Martin Price; Todd Dietz; Drew White; Brian Roberson

Subject: RE: Georgia Pacific Consumer Operations, Palatka Mill, Project No. 1070005-081-AC

Marty,

Based on 69000 DSCFM, 18” (-16), 75% humidity, 85 degrees we come up with 75,000 ACFM @
.069 density

The fan and motor selection do not change.

Curve attached.

Dave Cownie
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From: Reynolds. Ron E.

To: McWade, Tammy

Cc: McQuaig., Mary M.; Galler, Wayne J.
Subject: GP Palatka - Drawing of Drum Filter system
Date: Tuesday, May 21, 2013 5:41:27 PM
Attachments: 1234A0003a (2).pdf

Tammy,

Attached are preliminary drawings of the proposed drum filter system. The HEPA filter section
shown on page 2 downstream of the drum filter was not included as part of this project. I'll follow
up with you tomorrow.

Thanks,

Ron Reynolds

Senior Environmental Engineer - Air
GP, Palatka Operations

Palatka, FL 32178-0919

Office 386-329-0967

Cell 386-916-3133
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From: McQuaig. Mary M.

To: McWade, Tammy

Cc: Reynolds, Ron E.

Subject: Project No. 1070005-081-AC, Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations LLC
Date: Tuesday, July 02, 2013 3:42:10 PM

Attachments: 07-02-13Proof of Public Notice.pdf

Dear Ms. McWade,

Please accept the attached cover letter and affidavit as proof of publication of public notice of
intent to issue air construction permit for project number 1070005-081-AC. Should you have any
guestions regarding the attached, please contact Jim Eckenrode at (386) 329-5734 or Ron Reynolds
at (386) 329-0967.

Thank you,

Mary McQuaig

Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations LLC
Palatka, Florida

(386) 329-5697



mailto:Mary.McQuaig@gapac.com

mailto:Tammy.McWade@dep.state.fl.us

mailto:Ron.Reynolds@GAPAC.com



Palatka Pulp and Paper Operations
Georgi a.Pacific Consumer Products Division

P.O. Box 919
Palatka, FL 32178-0919
(386) 325-2001

July 2, 2013

Tammy T. McWade

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Division of Air Resource Management

Office of Permitting and Compliance

2600 Blair Stone Road

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400

RE:  Project No. 1070005-081-AC
Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations LLC, Palatka Mill
Replacement of Converting Department Baghouse with Drum Filtering System

Dear Ms. McWade:

In accordance with Rule 62-110.106(5) and (9), F.A.C., please find enclosed the proof of
publication of the public notice of intent to issue an air construction permit for the project
number referenced above. The public notice was published on June 29, 2013 in the Palatka
Daily News.

Should you have any questions or if further information is needed, please contact me at
(386) 329-5734.

Sincerely,
ARSI WAD

James P. Eckenrode
Environmental Manager

mm

Enclosure







STATE OF FLORIDA

County of Putnam

The undersigned personally appeared before me, a l\!?tal\jyul\?:?sllz for
the State of Florida, and deposes that thel Pala?ka Da\llE y "zh

daily newspaper of general circu!atlon, prmted‘m th% Cn% -
language and published in the City of l':’alatka in sai odm)r/

State; and that the attached order, notice, publication an

advertisement:
PUBLIC NOTICE OF INTENT TO 1SS

Was published in said newspaper 1 time with said being made on
the following dates:

06/29/2013

The Palatka Daily News has been continuously pub!ishetd a:f[ ?hdauy
cond class matter at the

newspaper, and has been entered as se :

post c?ffize at the City of Palatka, Putnam _County, Flonda,heafhtfor a

period of more than one year next precedmg_the date of the firs

publication of the above described order, notice and/or

advertisement.

S

Sworn to and subscribed to before me this 29th day of Jun_:e, ﬁOl\?ﬁbg
Joie Chitwood, Administrative Assistant, of the Palatka Daily News,
Florida corporation, on behalf of the corporation.

Mary Kaye Wells, Notary Public
My commission expires: July 22, 2015

Notary Seal
Seal of Office:
X Personally known to me, or
Produced identification:
X

PUBLIC NOTICE

PUBLIC NOTICE OF |N-
aﬁyr TO ISSUE AIR PER.

Florlda Department of En-
virenmental Protection
Division of Alr Resource
Managemem, Office of Per-
mitting and Compllance
Draft Alr Permit No.
1070005-081-A¢
Georgla-Paclfic Consumer
Oreratlons, LLC, Palatka
min ;
Putnam County, Florida

Applicant: The applicant
for this project |s Georgla-
Paclfic Consumer Opera-
tlons, LLC. The applicant's
authorized representative
and malllng address Is:
Gary L. Frost, Vice-Presid-
ent Operations, Georgia-
Paclile Consumer Opera-
tlons, LLC, Palatka Mill,
Post Office Box 919, Pal-
atka, Florida 32178,

Facility Location: Georgla-
Paciflc Consumer Opera-
tions, LLC operates the ex-
Isting Palatka Mill, which Is
located In Putnam Count;
at 215 Countiy Road 216 In
Palatka, Florida,

Project: This project au-
thorizes the replacement of
the exfall'lolg haglhouae sys-
tem located In the Convert-
ing Department with a new
drum flitering system, The
new drum filter| ng system
will control emlssions of
particulate matter from 12
converting lines In the
Converting Department,
Based on the expected
emisslons, the new drum
filtering system wili reduge
emisslons from the 12 con.
verting lines. Therefore, the
project wlll not trigaer pre-
consiruction review for the
Preventlon of Significant
Deterioration (PSD) of Air
Quallty pursuant to Rule
62-212.400, Florlda Admin-
Istrative Code (F.A.C.).

Permliting Authority: Ap-
plications for air construc-
tion permits are subject to
review In accordance with
the provisions of Chal_pter
403, Florida Statuies é .S,
and Chapters 62.4, 62-21
and 62-212 of the Florida
Adminisirative Code
(F.A.C.). The proposed
Project is not exempt from
air rermltllng require-
ments and an air permit is
required to perform the
Proposed work. The Per-
miiting Authority respons-
Ible for making a permit de-
termination for this project
Is the Office of Permitting
and Compliance In the De-
Eaﬂment of Environmental
rotection’s Divislon of Ajr
Resource Management,
The Permiting Authorliy’s
ghyslcn! address Is: 2600
lair Stone Road, Talla-
hassee, Florida, The Per-
mitting Authority's mailing
address [s: 2600 Blair
Stone Road, MS #5505, Tal-
lahassee, Florida 32399-
2400. The Permitting Au-
thorlty’s phone number |s
850-717-9000.

Project File: A cumrlete
project file Is avallable for
{:ublrc inspection during
he normal business hours
of B:00 a.m, to 5:00 p-m.,
Monday through Friday
(except legal holidays), at
the hgsical address Indic-
ated above for the Permit-
ting Authority, The com-
rlela project flle Includes
he draft permit, the Tech.
nical Evaluation and Pre-
liminary Determination, the
application and Informa-
tion submitted by the ap-
plicant (exclusive of con-
fidentlal records under
Section 403.111, F.S.). In-
terested persons may con-
tact the Permfmn? Author-
Ity's rrojecl engineer for
additlonal Iinformation at
the address and phone
number listed above. In ad-
dition, electronic coples of
these documents are avail-
able olil the following web
s e :

hip://www.dep.state.fl.us/a
Ir/emisslon/apds/default.as
P







Notice of Intent to Izssue Alr
Permit: The Permitting Au-
thority gives notice of Its
intent to Issue an alr con-
struction permit to the ap-
plicant for the project de-
scribed above. The applic-
ant has provided reason-
able assurance that opera-
tlon of rroposed equip-
ment will not adversely Im-
pact alr quality and that the
project will comply with all
e];prupr_llle provisions of
Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-
210, 62-212, 62-296 and 62-
207, F.A.C. The Permlittin
Authority will issue a final
permit in accordance with
the conditlons of the pro-
posed draft permit unless a
timely petition for an ad-
minlstrative hearing Is filed
under Sections 120.569
and 120.57, F.S. or unless

ublic comment received
n accordance with this no-
tice resulits In a different
decision or a signiflcant
change .of terms or condl-
tlons.

Comments: The Permitting
Authority will accept wrli-
ten comments concernln?
the proposed draft permit
for a perlod of 14 days
from the date of publica-
tion of the Public Notice,
Written commenis must be
recelved by the Permitiing
Authority by close of busi-
ness (5:00 p.m.) on or be-
fore the end of this 14-day
period. If written com-
ments recelved resull In a
significant change to the
draft permit, the Permitiing
Authority shall revise the
draft permit and require, If
plicable, another Public

otice. All comments filed
will be made avallable for
public inspection.

Petitions: A person whose
substantlal interests are af-
fected by the proposed
permitting decision may
r‘ellllon for an adminlstrai-
ve hearing in accordance
with Sections 120.569 and
120.57, F.S. Petitions filed
by the applicant or any of
the parties listed below
must be filed within 14

:!:‘ga of receipt of this wrii-

El ermit: s,
filed by any persons qﬂ-fg
than those entitled to.wilt-
ten notice under Sectlon
120.80(3%. F.S., must be
flled within 14 days of pub-
lication of the attached
Public Notice or within 14
days of recelpt of this writ-
ten notice of Intent to Is-
'sue Air Permlt, whichever
occurs first, Under Section
120.60(3), F.S., however,
any person who asked the
Permitting Authorlty for no-
tice of agency action may
flle a petition within 14
-days of recelpt of that no-
tice, regardless of the date
of publication. A petitioner
shall mall a copy of the pe-
tition to the applicant at the
address Indicated above, at
the time of filing. A petl-
tion for administrative
hearlng must contain the
Informatlon set forth be-
low and must be filed (re-
ceived) with the Agency
Clerk In the Department’'s
Office of General Counsel,
3900 Commonwealth
Boulevard, MS 35, Talla-
hassee, Florida 32399-
0 ;

3 0 0 4
Agency.Clerk@dep.state.fl.
us, before the deadline,
The fallure of any person to
file a petitlon within the ap-
propriate time perlod shall
constitute a waiver of that
person’s rlght to request
an administrative determin-
ation (hearing) under Sec-
tions 120.569 and 120.57,
F.S., or to Intervene in this
proceeding and participaie
as a party to It. Any sub-
sequent intervention (In a
proceeding Initiated by an-
other party) will be only at
the approval of the presid-
ing officer upon the filing
of a motion in compllance
with Rule 28-106.205,
F.A.C.

A petition that disputes the
material facts on which the
Permiiting Authority's ac-
tlon Is based must contain
the following Information:
(a) The name and address
of sach agency affected








and each agency’s file or
Identification number, If
known; (b) The name, ad-
dress, any email address,
telephone number and any
facsimile number of the pe-
titloner; the name, address
any emall address, tele-
hone number, and any
acsimile number of the pe-
titloner's representative, If
any, which shall be the ad-
dress for service purposes
during the course of the
proceeding; and an explan-
atlon of how the
petitloner's substantial in-
terests will be affected by
the agency determination;
(¢) A statement of when
and how each petitioner re-
celved notice of the agency
action or proposed de-
clsion; (d) K statement of
all disputed Issues of ma-
terlal fact. If there are none,
the petition must so Indic-
ate; (e) A concise state-
ment of the ultimate facis
alleged, including the spe-
cific facts the petitioner
contends warrant reversal
or modificatlon of the
agency’s proposed actlon;
(!? A statement of the spe-
clfic rules or statutes the
'petitioner contends re-
quire reversal or modifica-
tion of the aqency's pro-
posed action Including an
explanation of how the al-
leged facts. relate to the
speclilc rules or statutes;
and, (g) A statement of the
relief sought by the petl-
tloner, staling precisely the
actlon the petitloner
wishes the agency to take
with respect to the
agency’s proposed actlion.
A petition that does not
dispute the materlal facts
upon which the Permiitin
Authority's actlon Is base
shall state that no such
facts are in dispute and
otherwise shall contain the
same Information as set
forth above, as required by
Rule 28-106.301, F.A.C.

Because the administrat-
ive hearing process is de-
signed to formulate final
agency action, the flling of
a petition means that the
Permitting Authorliy's final
actlon may be dlfferent
from the position taken by
it In this Public Notice of
Intent to lesue Alr Permit.
Persons whose substan-
tial interests will be af-
fected by any such final de-
clsion of the Permitiing Au-
thority on the application
have the right to petition to
become a party to the pro-
ceeding, In accordance
with the requiremenis set
forth above.

Mediation: Mediation Is not
rvallahle in this proceed-
ng.

6/29/13
Legal No. 00014128










From: Reynolds. Ron E.

To: Scearce, Lynn; Frost, Gary (Florida)

Cc: Vest, Margaret M.; Rachal, Richard; forney.kathleen@epa.gov; "Ceron, Heather"; McWade, Tammy; Read.
David; Friday. Barbara

Subject: RE: 1070005-081-AC, Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC., Palatka Mill, Final Permit

Date: Thursday, July 18, 2013 4:36:03 PM

Attachments: image001.png

Receipt confirmed. Thank you!

Ron Reynolds
Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133

From: Scearce, Lynn [mailto:Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us]

Sent: Thursday, July 18, 2013 4:33 PM

To: Frost, Gary (Florida)

Cc: Reynolds, Ron E.; Vest, Margaret M.; Rachal, Richard; forney.kathleen@epa.gov; 'Ceron, Heather’;
McWade, Tammy; Read, David; Friday, Barbara; Scearce, Lynn

Subject: 1070005-081-AC, Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC., Palatka Mill, Final Permit

Dear Frost:

Attached is the official Notice of Final Permit for the project referenced below. Click on the
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

Permit Status: FINAL

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
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Criizhon o i FRESoncs Mardsgenian

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
by clicking on this link. DEP_Customer Survey.
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From: Reynolds. Ron E.

To: McWade, Tammy

Subject: RE: G-P Palatka Mill, Project No. 1070005-081-AC
Date: Monday, June 03, 2013 2:11:25 PM

Hi Tammy,

Seems reasonable and appropriate. I've forwarded your message to my supervisor and others for
consideration. | will follow up with you tomorrow.

Thanks!

Ron Reynolds
Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133

From: McWade, Tammy [mailto:Tammy.McWade@dep.state.fl.us]
Sent: Monday, June 03, 2013 1:23 PM

To: Reynolds, Ron E.

Subject: G-P Palatka Mill, Project No. 1070005-081-AC

Hi Ron,

Syed returned to work today and | was able to speak to him about the testing requirements for the
proposed drum filtering system. Testing of the equipment would consist of one of the two
scenarios:

1. Initial VE test (5% opacity limit) and VE test prior to TV renewal; or
2. Initial VE test (5% opacity limit) and Work Practice Standards submitted and kept on file.

Let me know your opinion. If you have any question or concerns please give me a call or email.

Thank you,

Fammy J. MclWade

Engineer Specialist 111

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Division of Air Resource Management (DARM)
Office of Permitting and Compliance (OPC)
Phone: 850/717-9086

GIC: 59586

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
Date: Friday, June 07, 2013 12:00:00 PM

Sounds great, Tammy!
and have a fantastic weekend as well!
Thanks,

Ron Reynolds
Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133

From: McWade, Tammy [mailto:Tammy.McWade@dep.state.fl.us]
Sent: Friday, June 07, 2013 10:43 AM

To: Reynolds, Ron E.

Subject: RE: G-P Palatka Mill, Project No. 1070005-081-AC

Hi Ron,
I am hoping by the end of next week we will have the draft issued. | will keep you posted.

Have a great weekend!

Fammy J. MclWade

Engineer Specialist 111

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Division of Air Resource Management (DARM)
Office of Permitting and Compliance (OPC)
Phone: 850/717-9086

GIC: 59586

From: Reynolds, Ron E. [mailto:Ron.Reynolds@GAPAC.com]
Sent: Friday, June 07, 2013 9:16 AM

To: McWade, Tammy
Subject: RE: G-P Palatka Mill, Project No. 1070005-081-AC

Tammy,

Just following up to see if there were any other questions regarding the application. Any idea when
the draft will be ready?

Thanks,

Ron Reynolds
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Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133

From: McWade, Tammy [mailto:Tammy.McWade@dep.state.fl.us]
Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 1:41 PM

To: Reynolds, Ron E.
Subject: RE: G-P Palatka Mill, Project No. 1070005-081-AC

Ok, thank you!

Fammy I. MclWade

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
Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2013 1:40 PM

To: McWade, Tammy
Cc: McQuaig, Mary M.; Eckenrode, Jim P.
Subject: RE: G-P Palatka Mill, Project No. 1070005-081-AC

Tammy,
We'd prefer to go with option 1. Initial VE and VE prior to TV renewal.

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

Subject: RE: GP Palatka - Drawing of Drum Filter system
Date: Thursday, May 23, 2013 2:58:47 PM
Tammy,

Please see below description copied from the scope of work.

Osprey’s New BLUE-SKY Filter System (System Patent pending) will consist of stages of
filtration as follows:

1) Stage 1. Osprey’s patented Phoenix Drum Filter features an upgraded Osprey rotary
drum filter with special attention paid to keeping any dust accumulation below the LEL
(lower explosive limit), at all times. These upgrades include trapeze nozzle mounting,
drive outside the filter, special lights and doors that will not trap dust, special inlet and
floor assembly to maintain air and material velocity, wider media holding bands to limit
the amount surface dust outside the nozzle paths, and new high performance filter
media and seals.

2) Stage 2. High Efficiency, High Capacity Pleated Pocket Filter Bank rated MERV 10. All
filters are mounted in a custom manufactured steel frame assembly.

3) Stage 3. High Efficiency, High Capacity Pleated Pocket Filter Bank rated MERV 14. All
filters are mounted in a custom manufactured steel frame assembly.

There is also an option for a stage 4 HEPA filter that can be installed in the future, but that will not
be installed with this project.

Let me know if you have any questions, or need more specific details. I'm still working on something
regarding the efficiency piece.

Thanks,

Ron Reynolds
Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133

From: McWade, Tammy [mailto:Tammy.McWade@dep.state.fl.us]
Sent: Thursday, May 23, 2013 11:06 AM

To: Reynolds, Ron E.

Subject: RE: GP Palatka - Drawing of Drum Filter system

Lucky you!
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I am in my off so call when it is convenient.

Thanks.

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
Sent: Thursday, May 23, 2013 11:00 AM

To: McWade, Tammy
Subject: RE: GP Palatka - Drawing of Drum Filter system

Got back early; so | can talk now or at 1:30.
Thanks,

Ron Reynolds
Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133

From: McWade, Tammy [mailto:Tammy.McWade@dep.state.fl.us]
Sent: Thursday, May 23, 2013 10:55 AM

To: Reynolds, Ron E.
Subject: RE: GP Palatka - Drawing of Drum Filter system

Hi Ron,
| will super glue myself in my office from 1:30—2:30 pm. ©

Talk to you soon,

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
Sent: Thursday, May 23, 2013 9:55 AM

To: McWade, Tammy
Subject: RE: GP Palatka - Drawing of Drum Filter system
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Hi Tammy,

| left you a message earlier but | will be leaving for a mandatory training (yawn) session in a few
minutes. Should be back by noon and available until 3pm. Let me know what would be a good time
and I'll call you. I'll be out of the office tomorrow.

Thanks,

Ron Reynolds
Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133

From: McWade, Tammy [mailto:Tammy.McWade@dep.state.fl.us]
Sent: Thursday, May 23, 2013 8:35 AM

To: Reynolds, Ron E.
Subject: RE: GP Palatka - Drawing of Drum Filter system

Hi Ron,

I am sorry but | was in back to back meetings yesterday. However, | am available today if you are
free. Let me know when you have time to discuss the project.

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

Sent: Tuesday, May 21, 2013 5:40 PM

To: McWade, Tammy

Cc: McQuaig, Mary M.; Galler, Wayne J.

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
Date: Thursday, May 23, 2013 11:00:29 AM

Got back early; so | can talk now or at 1:30.
Thanks,

Ron Reynolds
Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133

From: McWade, Tammy [mailto: Tammy.McWade@dep.state.fl.us]
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

I left you a message earlier but | will be leaving for a mandatory training (yawn) session in a few
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

Cc: Galler, Wayne J.; Vest, Margaret M.

Subject: RE: GP Palatka - Drawing of Drum Filter system

Date: Thursday, May 23, 2013 4:48:02 PM
Tammy,

Below is the email provided by the vendor estimating, but not guaranteeing, emissions
levels for the drum filter system through the MERV 14 filter stage. We judged the estimates
to be overly optimistic for a couple of reasons: 1) they are theoretical efficiencies based on
spherical particles and not tissue dust, and 2) actual testing of a similar Osprey drum filter
unit at another GP mill which yielded emissions < 0.001 grains/dscf, but not the equivalent
0.00005 grains/dscf that would result from the vendor estimates below. We determined
the 0.003 grains/dscf level as a conservative estimate of potential emissions that the system
should easily achieve but will still be a reduction from the previous PTE estimate.

Let me know of any questions or concerns.
Thanks,

Ron Reynolds
Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133

From: Drew White [mailto:Drew.White@ospreyfilters.com]
Sent: Tuesday, April 09, 2013 2:27 PM

To: Galler, Wayne J.; Martin Price
Cc: Todd Dietz; Reynolds, Ron E.; Garris, Gregory S.; Antoine, Melissa K.; Bailey, Scott K. (GP)
Subject: RE: Particulate Matter Emissions Data

Wayne,

-187.5 lbs/hr of total dust ducted to the drum filter systems.

-PM filterable fraction of the total dust entering the drum filtering system is estimated to be 187.5
Ibs/hr (particles greater than 10 microns in size)

-PM filterable fraction of the total dust entering the drum filtering system is estimated to be 10 %
of the total PM filterable, or 18.75 Ibs/hr

-PM,, ¢ filterable fraction of the total dust entering the drum filtering system is estimated to be 0.6%

of the total PM filterable, or 1.125 Ibs/hr.

-Three filters operating at 70,000 CFM each
-Each drum filter is three stages, with the last stage being the MERV 14 cassette filter
-ASHRAE 52.2 data used as the efficiency of each filter stage

Our best estimate for filter emissions is as follows:
99.95% removal of the PM filterable fractions of dust entering the drum filter system
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99.9% removal of the PM filterable fractions of dust entering the drum filter system

98.6% removal of the PM, ¢ filterable fractions of dust entering the drum filter system

This would result in:
0.094 Ibs/hr of the filterable PM emissions
0.019 Ibs/hr of the filterable PM;, emissions

0.016 Ibs/hr of filterable PM, 5 emissions

This takes into account the combined efficiency of all three filter stages.

Best regards,
Drew White

OSPREY CORPORATION

Phone (Direct): 404-320-2356
Phone (Mobile): 404-519-3282

Fax: 404-634-1401

Email: drew.white@ospreyfilters.com
Internet: www.ospreyfilters.com
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From: Reynolds. Ron E.

To: McWade, Tammy
Subject: RE: Georgia Pacific Consumor Operations, Palatka Mill, Project No. 1070005-081-AC
Date: Friday, June 14, 2013 9:45:01 AM

We'll get it sorted out by Monday. Have a nice weekend!
Thanks,

Ron Reynolds
Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133

From: McWade, Tammy [mailto: Tammy.McWade@dep.state.fl.us]

Sent: Friday, June 14, 2013 8:32 AM

To: Reynolds, Ron E.

Subject: RE: Georgia Pacific Consumor Operations, Palatka Mill, Project No. 1070005-081-AC

Hi Ron,

I am sorry, | meant to say in the application for the Title V that you sent me, please see attached.
Monday is fine. | will finalize the permit as soon as | get the numbers/units that are applicable for
the baghouse and drum filtering system.

| will keep you posted.

Thank you for all your help! Enjoy your week off!

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
Sent: Thursday, June 13, 2013 4:39 PM

To: McWade, Tammy
Cc: McQuaig, Mary M.
Subject: RE: Georgia Pacific Consumor Operations, Palatka Mill, Project No. 1070005-081-AC

Tammy, Please clarify which part of the T-V permit that you see 207,000 acfm. | don’t see

any reference to flow under Subsection S for EU 050 — Converting Department. | just pulled

up the T-V renewal application submitted in 2011 and it says 219,000 acfm at 100 degrees F

(no moisture given). The permit application for the proposed system says 229,850 acfm
(estimate) at 90 degrees F. | think this difference is just due to variation in
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temperature/moisture assumptions when back-calculating from the 209,000 dscfm flow
rate. I’'m told that the Osprey units come in various available sizes, one of which is a
maximum of 70,000 acfm and was represented in the drawing. However, the actual flow
will be determined by the fan which should be designed to the acfm equivalent of 69,000
dscfm per unit. So the application should be representative of the maximum flow rates
which are the same as the existing system, but the final system as installed may be equal or
less, but not more.

I’'m also told that we need to get confirmation from an engineer with Osprey on a couple of
these flow questions, and he may not be available until Monday. So | won’t be able to get
you a final response until then. | apologize for the confusion of numbers and units. I'll be
out of the office/state next week but will be checking email, and Wayne Galler of our
Atlanta office may be sending you the response. My internet access in Tennessee may be
limited but I'll have my blackberry.

Thanks,

Ron Reynolds
Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133

From: McWade, Tammy [mailto: Tammy.McWade@dep.state.fl.us]
Sent: Thursday, June 13, 2013 3:04 PM

To: Reynolds, Ron E.
Subject: RE: Georgia Pacific Consumor Operations, Palatka Mill, Project No. 1070005-081-AC

The Title V air operating permit.

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
Sent: Thursday, June 13, 2013 3:03 PM

To: McWade, Tammy
Subject: RE: Georgia Pacific Consumor Operations, Palatka Mill, Project No. 1070005-081-AC

Tammy,

Can you tell me where the baghouse flow is stated to be in acfm instead of dscfm?
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Thanks,

Ron Reynolds
Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133

From: McWade, Tammy [mailto:Tammy.McWade@dep.state.fl.us]
Sent: Wednesday, June 12, 2013 1:51 PM

To: Reynolds, Ron E.
Subject: Georgia Pacific Consumor Operations, Palatka Mill, Project No. 1070005-081-AC

Hi Ron,

| have a quick question on the new drum filtering system. It is stated in the application that the
filtering system will have the same air flow capacity of 207,000 dry standard cubic feet per minute
(dscfm) as the existing baghouse collection system. Each drum filter operating with a flow rate of
69,000 dscfm. Some of the information provided stated that each drum filter having a flow rate of
70,000 dscf, please clarify. Additionally, the baghouse is 207,000 actual cubic feet per minute
(acfm), please clarify.

Thank you,

Tammy J. MclWade

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
Subject: RE: Georgia Pacific, Palatka Mill, Project No. 1070005-081-AC
Date: Tuesday, July 02, 2013 11:28:20 AM

You will have it shortly.
Thanks,

Ron Reynolds
Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133

From: McWade, Tammy [mailto: Tammy.McWade@dep.state.fl.us]
Sent: Tuesday, July 02, 2013 11:20 AM

To: Reynolds, Ron E.

Subject: RE: Georgia Pacific, Palatka Mill, Project No. 1070005-081-AC

Only the permit engineer needs to be sent the information, which is me. ©
I'will in turn send it for posting, etc.

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
Sent: Tuesday, July 02, 2013 11:13 AM

To: McWade, Tammy
Subject: RE: Georgia Pacific, Palatka Mill, Project No. 1070005-081-AC

| was just asking our admin about that. She’s preparing to send it Fedex. If we send electronically,
should it go to you or Syed, or other?

Thanks,
Ron Reynolds

Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133

From: McWade, Tammy [mailto:Tammy.McWade@dep.state.fl.us]
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Sent: Tuesday, July 02, 2013 10:48 AM
To: Reynolds, Ron E.
Subject: Georgia Pacific, Palatka Mill, Project No. 1070005-081-AC

Hi Ron,

This is just a reminder that we will accept an electronic copy of the published public notice and
affidavit.

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
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